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The Planning Board of the Town of Cicero held a meeting on Monday, October 21, 2013 at 7:00 
p.m. in the Town Hall at 8236 Brewerton Road, Cicero, New York 13039. 
 
Agenda: 
-Pledge of Allegiance 
-Approval of the Minutes from the October 7, 2013 Meeting (approved) 
-Minor Subdivision, Preliminary & Final Plan, Public Hearing, Woznica Estates, 7029 Island Road, 
2 Lots (approved) 
-Zone Change Recommendation, Public Hearing, 7800 Brewerton Road LLC, 7800 & 7802 
Brewerton Road, General Commercial to General Commercial Plus (recommended to the Town 
Board) 
-Minor Subdivision, Preliminary & Final Plan, McDermott Subdivision, 5860 South Bay Road, 2 
Lots (approved) 
-Informal Discussion:  Continuing Education on Agricultural Uses, Districts & Site Plans 
 
Board Members Present:  Bob Smith (Chairman), Joe Ruscitto, Chuck Abbey, Pat Honors and 
Mark Marzullo 
Others Present:  Neil Germain (Esquire, Germain & Germain), Mark Parrish (P.E., O’Brien & 
Gere), Steve Procopio (Code Enforcement Officer), Jessica Zambrano (Town Board Member) 
and Tonia Mosley (Planning Board Clerk) 
 
Chairman Smith opened the meeting by noting the emergency exit locations.  He asked that cell 
phones be silenced.   
 
Mr. Honors led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

APPROVAL OF THE OCTOBER 7, 2013 PLANNING BOARD MEETING MINUTES 
 

Mr. Marzullo made a motion to approve the Planning Board meeting minutes from October 7, 
2013.  Mr. Abbey seconded the motion.  The Chairman asked for a vote. 
In favor: 5 Opposed: 0 Abstained: 0 approved unanimously 
 
 
 
 



PLANNING BOARD MEETING       OCTOBER 21, 2013 
Town of Cicero        Page 2 
 

MINOR SUBDIVISION, PRELIMINARY & FINAL PLAN, PUBLIC HEARING 
WOZNICA ESTATES, 7029 ISLAND ROAD (TAX MAP # 062.-01-49.3), 2 LOTS 

IANUZI & ROMANS 
(ATTACHMENT A: OBG WOZNICA ESTATES LETTER DATED 10.17.13) 

 
Representatives:  Hal Romans, Surveyor & Planner, Ianuzi & Romans 
                                Tom Woznica, Applicant 
 
Chairman Smith explained how the public hearing would be conducted.  The applicant will 
quickly cover their proposal for the Board and the audience.  I will then open the public hearing 
for comments for and against.  Then we will close the public hearing and move on with the 
business. 
 
Mr. Romans noted the difference between the plan handed out tonight and the plan on the 
board.  There is an existing pond up in this area, which is an Army CORPS wetland according to 
large scale national inventory map—the national wetland inventory map.  There is also a small 
wetland section that sits here.    
 
We are here tonight for a two lot subdivision of approximately 38.06 acres on Cicero Center 
Road here and Island Road here.  Lot 1 is 40,400 square feet.  Lot 2, the residual lot, is 
approximately 37.14 acres. 
 
The subdivision is to settle the estate.  We were granted a variance by the Zoning Board of 
Appeals (ZBA) for Lot 1 as far as area and lot depth.  There is an ingress/egress easement for 
access used by Chris Woznica for access to this building.   
 
Chairman Smith:  If we approve this we aren’t creating a non-conforming lot, correct? 
 
Mr. Procopio:  They were granted a variance. 
 
Chairman Smith:  So it’s all in place.   
 
Mr. Procopio:  Yes 
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Mr. Smith:  With that we will open the public hearing.  (The public hearing opened at 7:07 p.m.) 
Would anyone who would like to speak for the proposed subdivision please step up to the 
microphone?  (There was no response.)  Is there anyone who would like to speak against the 
proposed subdivision?  (There was no response.)  There being no one we will close the public 
hearing.  (The pubic hearing closed at 7:07 p.m.)  Can we have SEQR? 
 
Mr. Ruscitto made a motion regarding SEQR.  He read:  Be it further resolved that the Planning 
Board of the Town of Cicero hereby determines that the proposed action will not have a 
significant effect on the environment and that this resolution shall constitute a negative 
declaration for the purposes of Article 8 of the Environmental Conservation Law of the State of 
New York.  Chairman Smith seconded the motion and called a vote. 
In favor: 5 Opposed: 0 Abstained: 0 approved unanimously 
 
Mr. Smith:  I would like to come up with a resolution approving the subdivision.  Could you 
word one for me? 
 
Mr. Germain:  You would move for the adoption of a resolution approving the subdivision 
application known as Woznica Estates, 7029 Island Road, tax map # 062.-01-49.3, 2 Lots.  Mr. 
Smith made the motion as stated by Mr. Germain above.  Mr. Ruscitto seconded the motion.  
Chairman Smith called a vote. 
In favor: 5 Opposed: 0 Abstained: 0 approved unanimously 
 

ZONE CHANGE RECOMMENDATION, PUBLIC HEARING, 7800 BREWERTON ROAD, LLC 
7800 & 7802 BREWERTON ROAD, TAX MAP # 036.-04-19.0 
GENERAL COMMERCIAL TO GENERAL COMMERCIAL PLUS 

IANUZI & ROMANS 
 
 

Representative:  Hal Romans, Surveyor & Planner, Ianuzi & Romans 
 
Mr. Romans:  The existing survey on the overhead projection shows the property in question.  It 
is approximately 3.419 acres of property that fronts onto Brewerton Road or U.S. Route 11.  It is 
the old car dealership that became a night club at one point---that did not last very long.  The 
applicant is seeking to locate his business there:  Admar Equipment.  The business is similar to 
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Sun-Belt Rental.  They do have a lot of the scissor lift type trucks. 
 
If the applicant gets the zone change he would come back in front of this Board for site plan 
approval.  Again the company is Admar Equipment.  They rent and sell equipment.  They would 
do some in house repairs.  Equipment is advertised as rental equipment.  After it gets to a 
certain age or a certain date it gets traded in or sold off.  They do not store old equipment or 
junk on their sites.  Their website notes very clean, very presentable locations through out New 
York.  That is why we are seeking the zone change. 
 
Mr. Smith:  By way of information so that everyone understands, this is currently zoned General 
Commercial.  So there is zoning in place for quite a few uses.  We are going to do this just a little 
different this time.  Instead of being for or against the project, if you have questions that you 
want to ask because you don’t understand what is going to go on there, why don’t we handle 
some informational questions first?  We would like to give everyone a chance to ask questions 
before we go to for or against. 
 
Does anyone have questions? (The public hearing opened at 7:15 p.m.)  I ask that you please 
come up to the podium.   
 
Roland Giroux, 110 Kopp Avenue:  You indicate this would go from General Commercial to 
General Commercial Plus.  My question is what is General Commercial Plus?   
 
Mr. Germain:  It is a zoning classification that would allow the applicant to come back and have 
slightly different uses then they can get in General Commercial.  Right now the property is 
zoned General Commercial.     
 
General Commercial Plus is still commercial, but it would allow some additional uses if they 
were approved by the Planning Board.   
 
Mr. Giroux:  In other words for example, you aren’t going to run a bar there with parties and all 
that kind of stuff? 
 
Mr. Smith:  Actually, it is still zoned for that use.  To answer your question there has been 
several inquiries over something happening with the property.  One was for another night club,  
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which did not work out.  But it currently is zoned for that.  It is also zoned for an auto 
dealership, motorcycle shop/dealership----a number of things are already in General 
Commercial zoning that we would have to consider.   
 
There have been a couple of businesses that seem to work better for the neighborhood.  The 
business that is looking at the property now operates from 7 a.m. to 5 p.m. and they have a lot 
less traffic.  It helps us plus it protects you. 
 
Unfortunately, the way the zoning code is written, we can’t consider their site plan to work 
with them on getting the screening and stuff up because it is not allowed yet in General 
Commercial.   
 
I don’t think anyone wants another night club there.  But, right now the zoning is appropriate 
for it.   
 
Mr. Giroux:  Now that you’ve said that, my other question is who approved it?  Who approved 
the right of some company to go in there a run a night club? 
 
Chairman Smith:  That is because it is zoned General Commercial, on Route 11.  The zoning is 
approved by the Town.  That was done years ago. 
 
Mr. Giroux:  Can the people who live in that area ask the Town of Cicero to have a new meeting 
to consider that? 
 
Chairman Smith:  To consider what? 
 
Mr. Giroux:  To change it so that beer joints and places like that can not exist in that area? 
 
Chairman Smith:  Mr. Germain can you explain? The Town Board can’t do that. 
 
Mr. Giroux:  There is no such thing as can’t.  We both know that.  It can be done.  There has to 
be a procedure to do it.  That is what I am asking. 
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Mr. Germain:  I think what we are talking about is the property has a commercial use which 
does allow a bar there.  But, what this applicant is trying to do is, get away from that use and 
change it so that they can have another use that is not a bar.   
 
Mr. Giroux:  That is exactly what I am saying. 
 
Mr. Germain:  That is exactly what the applicant is trying to do. 
 
Mr. Smith:  That is why we are asking for it to be General Commercial Plus.  The other nice thing 
is several of the people who have looked at this property have indicated it would be leased.  
This applicant has indicated to us that they are going to purchase the property.  Their business 
will be there.  They are going to own it. 
 
Mr. Giroux:  That sounds great.  You have answered my questions and I thank you. 
 
Chairman Smith:  That is what we want to do.  I believe that we notified everyone one on Kopp.  
There is no doubt that it has not been easy for you guys.  This seems to be a great opportunity. 
 
Mr. Honors:  Sir, do you understand what Admar Supply Company is and does?  I know people 
have a hard time hearing in the back.   
 
Mr. Giroux:  Yes 
 
Mr. Honors:  I think that it would be more suitable to what you guys are looking for as a 
neighborhood friendly business. 
 
Mr. Romans gave project information to audience members. 
 
Patrick Tortora, 105 Kopp Avenue:  You say the time is from 7 to 5.  Would that be weekdays? 
 
Mr. Smith:  Monday through Friday is their normal business days, never on Sundays.  They 
might have to pick something up on a Saturday but that is not their normal course of business.   
 
Mr. Tortora:  Will they do body repair outside of the buildings? 
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Mr. Smith:  No, I don’t think that they do any body repair at all. 
 
Mr. Romans:  That would not be allowed, no. 
 
Mr. Tortora:  How long has Commercial Plus been on the books? 
 
Mr. Smith:  It was added September 10, 2007. 
 
Mr. Tortora:  If there is a lot of noise, will they go according to the noise ordinance that was 
established last year? 
 
Chairman Smith:  We are going to do a site plan review.  They have indicated there should not 
be a noise issue; they go home so there will not be a lot of noise.  You know how site plan 
works.  When it comes time for site plan we will re-post card the neighborhood.  Everyone can 
come in as neighbors and talk to the people who want to do the development, they can talk to 
you, and we can talk to you.  Those sort of things would be worked out during site plan 
approval. 
 
They have a bunch of locations.  They are currently located in DeWitt.  You can go over and see 
what their operation entails.  They have indicated that they want to be good neighbors.  They 
are already talking about screening and putting up taller trees along property lines, etc. 
 
Mr. Tortora:  What about the fence in back of us?  They have replaced three sections in back of 
my house and a couple of sections at the end of the street.  The fence is old and rotted.  Are 
they compelled to fix it? 
 
Chairman Smith:  As you know, that is part of site plan.  We can require that they mitigate and 
fix that, but we can’t require that until we get to site plan review.  And we can’t get to site plan 
because we don’t have the proper zoning yet.  I think that we could end up with someone who 
wants to be there and someone who would do a good job. 
 
Mr. Tortora:  Thank you very much. 
 
Robert Messick, 100 Kopp Avenue:  What is going into the place?  I’m against this because of   
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the amount of fumes added to the area.  Why more?   
 
Chairman Smith:  It is a commercial site.  There is someone paying taxes on it as a commercial 
site.   
 
Mr. Messick:  What about the bus fumes?  We have a crossing where the traffic is tremendous. 
 
Chairman Smith:  There are no buses here.  The applicant rents construction equipment.  A bus 
company did want to lease the property, but that has changed.  We have had a lot of people 
interested in the site. 
 
Mr. Romans:  Admar is a supply company.   The applicant will purchase the property subject to 
his being able to put his business there. 
 
Chairman Smith:  Does anyone else have a question before we go to for or against the zone 
change?  (There was no response.)  Would anyone like to speak for the zone change?  (There 
was no response.)  Would anyone like to speak against the zone change?  (There was no 
response.)  We will close the public hearing.  (The public hearing closed at 7:24 p.m.)  Can we do 
SEQR? 
 
Mr. Ruscitto made a motion regarding SEQR.  He read:  Be it further resolved that the Planning 
Board of the Town of Cicero hereby determines that the proposed action will not have a 
significant effect on the environment and that this resolution shall constitute a negative 
declaration for the purposes of Article 8 of the Environmental Conservation Law of the State of 
New York.  Chairman Smith seconded the motion and called a vote. 
In favor: 5 Opposed: 0 Abstained: 0 approved unanimously 
 
Chairman Smith:  I would like to make a resolution to the Town Board recommending the zone 
change. 
 
Mr. Germain:  You would move for the adoption of a resolution recommending the application 
of 7800 Brewerton Road LLC, 7800 & 7802 Brewerton Road, tax map # 036.-04-19.0 for the 
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proposed zone change General Commercial to General Commercial Plus to the Town Board.  
Chairman Smith made the motion as stated by Mr. Germain above.  Mr. Abbey seconded the 
motion.  The Chairman called a vote. 
In favor: 5 Opposed: 0 Abstained: 0 approved unanimously 
 

MINOR SUBDIVISION, PRELIMINARY AND FINAL PLAN, MCDERMOTT SUBDIVISION 
5860 SOUTH BAY ROAD, 2 LOTS 

MIKE MCDERMOTT 
 
 

Representative:  Mike McDermott, Esquire 
 
Chairman Smith:  We covered this in a zone change not too long ago and held a public hearing. 
 
Mr. Germain:  There were a couple of items noted in the comments that the Board could either 
wave or ask that they be made a condition of approval and incorporated into the map.  They 
were minor changes that would need to be made on the map.  The ones I have include showing 
the locations of utilities, water, sewer and gas on the map.  Bulk regulations and zoning be 
provided on the plan.  Topographic information should be provided but you can wave that.  A 
signature block for the Onondaga County Department and the name and address of the owners 
of the subdivision should be provided on the plan.  Typically these things would be provided on 
the plan.  The question is do you want to include those requirements for the final plan that you 
are going to submit, sign and have the actual subdivision based upon? 
 
Chairman Smith:  Considering the use and the size of the lot, I don’t personally think that there 
is a reason to require the applicant to do topographical measurements.  We do need a 
signature block.  Do I have to sign this subdivision? 
 
Mr. Germain:  You would have to at some time.  What will happen is when the motion is made 
there will be four items that should be added to the plan.   
 
Mr. Ruscitto made a motion regarding SEQR.  He read:  Be it further resolved that the Planning 
Board of the Town of Cicero hereby determines that the proposed action will not have a 
significant effect on the environment and this resolution has constitute a negative declaration  
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for the purposes of Article 8 of the Environmental Conservation Law of the State of New York.  
Mr. Smith seconded the motion and called a vote. 
In favor: 5 Opposed: 0 Abstained: 0 approved unanimously 
 
Mr. Germain:  You would move for the adoption of a resolution approving the subdivision 
application known as McDermott Subdivision, 5860 South Bay Road, 2 Lots.  This approval is 
contingent upon the following:   

1.  The plan should be revised to show the location of utilities such as water, sanitary 
sewer, gas, electric and telecommunication facilities  and  should be shown on the plan. 

2. The plan should include the bulk regulations for the zoning districts on the lots and 
should be provided on the plan. 

3.  A signature block for the Onondaga County Department of Health’s approval should be 
provided on the plan.   

4. The name and address of the owner and sub-divider should be provided on the plan.   
I note that the applicant is hereby notified that the Chairman of the Planning Board will delay 
the signing of the final plan until the Chairman verifies that the applicant has submitted an 
approved easement and forms associated with the application and makes those necessary 
adjustments to the plan.  Mr. Smith made the motion as stated by Mr. Germain above.  Mr. 
Abbey seconded the motion.  Chairman Smith called a vote. 
In favor: 5 Opposed: 0 Abstained: 0 approved unanimously 

 
INFORMAL DISCUSSION 

CONTINUING EDUCATION---AGRICULTURAL USES, DISTRICTS & SITE PLANS 
 

Mr. Germain:  We are going to talk about Agricultural Zoning, Agricultural Districts and the Ag & 
Markets Law.   
 
Chairman Smith:  We had a number of meetings after the last equestrian center was approved.  
The definitions mean something.  Everyone should be aware of the three. 
 
Mr. Germain:  There is a lot of confusion around this.  Let us start with the State of New York.  
The State wanted to promote agricultural development and came up with the Ag & Markets 
Law.  Part of that Law establishes an Ag District.  This is a creation of the State that gives 
Counties the ability to set up an Ag District.  In an Ag District the Planning Board and local 
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authorities are very circumscribed as to what they can do because the State set it up and the 
State controls it.  They will not allow a Planning Board or a Town government or a Village 
government, etc to interfere in an Ag District.   
 
Here is our confusion.  We call our Agricultural Zoning an Ag District.  That is not the same as an 
Ag District per that section of the Ag & Markets Law.   
 
Mr. Smith:  Are there any State sanctioned Ag Districts within the Town of Cicero? 
 
Mr. Germain:  No, not that I know of.  That is why it doesn’t apply. None of that stuff is really 
going to apply to you.  To get an Ag District you have to, and I and going to give you a hand-out; 
you have to go through a process as set up by statute.  You go to the County and ask to have an 
Ag District in your Town.    Land owners would have to do it.  I think that the minimum acreage 
is 50 acres.  You can’t regulate that type of Ag District to the same extent that you can regulate 
other properties because New York State has set it aside to prevent local municipalities from 
regulating and making it more difficult for farm activity. 
 
The reality is the portion of that law that limits your ability to legislate in an Ag District applies 
only to an Ag District.  And there are none. 
 
The confusion we have is our Agricultural Zoning is called an Ag District.  It would be less 
confusing if we said that was zoned agricultural.  You would not be concerned about an Ag 
District because you don’t have one. 
 
I can give you the handout for zoning.  If anyone is curious I have the New York State Land 
Owner Guide for someone who wants to set up an Ag District in their community.    To be 
honest, you should hope that they don’t. 
 
Chairman Smith:  I don’t see one coming.  The County Clerk said that there were none.   
 
Mr. Germain:  I also have an article on what the analysis is to see if local zoning  interferes with 
Ag Districts.  Basically, you can only go for Health & Safety.  Even a certificate of occupancy has 
been overruled in the courts by the Ag & Markets Law.  Again, that is only in an Ag District, 
something we don’t even have. 
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Mr. Procopio:  What Mr. Germain was talking about is Ag Districts in zoning.  But, the building 
code of New York State, defines an Agricultural building.  That is completely different in and of 
itself.  You get an exemption from the construction requirements of the building code if you are 
building an agricultural building and use it for agricultural purposes for example, raising live 
stock, horticultural issues, etc. 
 
Mr. Germain:  The building code is definitely different.   
 
Mr. Smith:  What the Department of State considers is a grey area.  We all assume once we 
approve something it goes to the Codes Office who regulates the building, etc.  That does not 
happen under this exemption for agricultural.  It puts a little bit of a burden on the Planning 
Board because the only shot the Town gets to make sure it is safe, etc, is here.  There are 
agricultural exemptions from the building code, there are Ag Districts and then there is our own 
Agricultural Zoning. 
 
Mr. Procopio:  The first thing you would need to pay attention to is the general requirements, 
scope and revisions of Chapter 1 of the Building Code.  There are four exemptions to the 
Building Code.  Number 2 is for Agricultural buildings.  (Mr. Procopio read the definitions of 
agricultural buildings, etc.) 
 
Mr. Abbey made a motion to adjourn.  Chairman Smith seconded the motion.  The motion 
was approved unanimously. 
 
IN AS MUCH AS THERE WAS NO FURTHER BUSINESS BEFORE THE BOARD, THE MEETING WAS 
ADJOURNED AT 7:47 P.M. 
 
Submitted by, 
Tonia Mosley, Planning Board Clerk 
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